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De~r	 Mayor Brodell, 

This is to confirm, record and reiterate the comments I made 
t () you I .70 e Tom 1 i son and Ron Shlp1 e y aft e r my ins pe c t ion 0 f 1. It e 
tthove r.eferenced building this past Sunday (Oct. 22, 1995). I have 
Also added some comments concerning thoughts I have had since Ollr 
conversation on Sunday, 

As rOll know I have not. made a structllraJ. analyst!') of this 
b II i J. ding and r don 0 t fee 1 t hat you 5 h 0 u 1d h a verne t () dot his . ~\ Y 
obserVnt.iOIlS are based on a relatively brief inspection of the 
structure from the attic, a very brief look at the plans f.lnd 
information about the building's history and the recent renovation 
<'I.nd subsequent problems passed on to me by yourself, Mr. Tonllisor. 
and ~lr. Shipley. I a.m also relying on thirty years expf'rlence as 
C:l st.ructural engineer. 

Based on my observation of the building and its recent history 
T wou Id be gravel y concerned about the building's safety and ~'olil d 
sp.r.iously consider evacuation immediately. This may be Rn over 
ref1.ction bllt r would much prefer to be overly cautious than to risk 
a cRttistrophlc failure. This recommendation is basE'd Oil Lht' 
following facts and assumptions. 

1.	 The existing roof which is as much as 1 1/2 inches thick in 
places and was originally to have been removed according to 
the plans submitted. to t.he buildings department, was not 
removed. The removal of the existing roof would hRve at least 
partially compensated for the extra load that has been added 
t.O the structure. App~rent.ly the plans issued t.o the 
contra(~t.ol' were altered to delete the note calling for rf>movA2 
of the e~ieting roof. 
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2. The original building design probably accounted for only the 
weight of the original roof structure with only a minimum code 
requi red live load. Since the build ing is now more t.han 40 
years old it is likely that several additional layers of 
roofing material have been added over the years. In addition 
the roof is now taking the additional weight of the new metal 
roof and its supporting steel structure, the additional weight 
of plywood decking nailed to the ceiling joists/the 
additional weight of the added floored areas in attic and the 
mechanical units, piping, etc. which have been add~d in the 
attic. 

3.	 There are some areas of the roof which' can be observed from 
the attic where construction' defects are apparent. Several of 
the steel stub columns from the new metal roof down on to the 
existing truss panel points are not centered on the truss; 
some of these stub columns are not plumb and one of the 
columns is actually missing. Some of the steel collars which 
tie the steel stub columns to the trusses are twisted somewhat 
and the bolts are not tight and do not appear to be prop~rly 
installed. There is one new steel roof purlin that was welded 
to a steel beam whose welds have failed. The purlin is barely 
connected to the supporting beam by a weld at the top flange. 
This purlin appears to be in danger of collapsing. 

4.	 The existing main roof trusses appear to be over stres::led 
along the bottom chord connections at a few locations. Th~re 
is some rather deep cracking in some areas around the bolts. 
Of course one of the trusses has actually had its bottom chord 
severed according to what you, Mr. Tomlison and Mr. Shipley 
told me. I could not observe this damaged member from the 
attic but if it is indeed severed then this representg H 

structural failure of a major load bearing member and in my 
opinion you are very lucky that a. section of roof did not 
collapse. 

5.	 There are several areas where badly cracked truss members have 
been repaired wi th epoxy injection. Several other truss 
members have been reinforced by nailing 2 inch thick members 
on each side. Mr. Shipley sa.id he inquired about these added 
members and was told by the architect that they were just for 
added strength. 

In view of the above noted observations I would immediately 
contact the architect and structural engineer and ask for written 
certification from the structural engineer that the buildi.ng is 
~afe in its present condition with the old roof still in place. J 
would ask why the one truss failed and others are showing signs of 
distress. 

There is nothing wrong with repairing the cracked trusse~ with 
epoxy injection if it is done properly. However this wi 11 only 
bring the member back to its original strength. It will not. 

prevent the member from failing if it is overstres~ed. 
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Concerning the truss that faDed there are two possible 
reasons in my opinion. Either the bottom chord was damaged before 
the r.enovation or the truss is overloaded now. If the truss was 
damaged suffj,ciently to fail this should certainly have been 
spotted and repaired before any load was added to the roof. On th~ 
other hand if the bottom chord was sound before the renovation then 
it must be severely overloaded now. If this is the case then all 
of the other trusses must also be overloaded since the trusses 
appear to be identical and have similar loading. If they al'~ 

over1oaded then what might we expect if another 15 pounds per 
sqUo!'l.'re foot of load is added in a heavy snow or ice storm? 

To reit~rate my recommendations r would evacuate the building 
immediately at least until the structural engineer has evaluHt<?d 
the structllre in place and given' you a written statement that it is 
safe. He is not likely to do that, unless he 1s convinced thKt il 
i!'l safe. 

I may be considered an alarmist for making such a cirrt~ tic: 
re~ommendation but this building has suffered a structural failure 
and YOli are 1 ucky 'the roof did not colI apse. Thi sis a grave 1 y 
serious m~tter in my opinion. I have been fortunate to have never 
hf'en directly involved in a structurA.l failure but I have stlldif'd 
structural failures over a period of many years. Quite oftl"'n t.her€" 
is ample warning of on impending disaster that is ignQred by 
owners, and design and construction professionals alike who simply 
do not wan t to bel ieve there is a serious problem. They mak~ 

decisions based on their hope that everything will be okay. These 
dec;isinng sometimes look very foolish in retrospect. 

If I	 can be of further service please give me a call, 

red Hegi, 

FH/tam 

cc:	 Mr. Joe Tomlinson 
Mz'. R.on Shipley 


